
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

19 August 2020 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 27th August, 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 

This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) England & 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live 
via:  www.mybostonuk.com/youtube 

 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor George Cornah 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 

Deborah Evans, Neill Hastie and Frank Pickett 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 18) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the meetings held on 6th February and 4th June 
2020. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.mybostonuk.com/youtube


 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 24th August 2020. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES FOR CONSULTATION  
(Pages 19 - 30) 
 

 (A report by James Gilbert, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate 
Services) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

6 February 2020 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Richard Austin BEM, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, 
Anne Dorrian, Deborah Evans, Neill Hastie, Jonathan Noble and Frank Pickett 
 
In attendance: Councillor Martin Howard (Portfolio Holder) and Councillor Paul Skinner  
 
Officers –  
Head of Regulatory Services and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
30   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the previous meeting, held on the 16th January 2020 were agreed by the 
Committee and signed by the Chairman. 
 
31   APOLOGIES 

 
There were no apologies of absence received 
 
32   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Tom Ashton declared that he was a Member of another Authority and a 
Member of the Black Sluice Internal Drainage Board (Minute 34 refers) 
 
33   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None 
 
34   DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 2020/21 - 2024/25 - FOR CONSULTATION 
 

The Accountancy Manager - Revenues & Systems presented the Draft Budget Setting 
Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020/21 -2024/25 and Members were 
asked to make comments to be fed back to Cabinet as part of the consultation prior to 
the budget’s approval at Full Council on 2 March 2020.  
 
The Portfolio Holder commented that, as in previous years, the budget had been 
balanced in difficult circumstances.   
 
In response to questions, it was explained that the Boston Town Area Committee 
(BTAC) had recommended an increase in its precept of 1.94%, but this had been 
rounded up and was shown in the report as 2%. 
 
Members commented that the increases proposed by the Police and County Council 
were quite significant and that the savings target depended on Government funding.  In 
particular, Members discussed the effect of the internal drainage board (IDB) precepts, 
which was included in the amount the council was able to increase council tax by before 
being capped.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 February 2020 
 

A Member explained that other local authorities and IDBs in Lincolnshire and also 
nationally were coming together to lobby Government to have the IBD levy taken out of 
the calculation for the council tax cap.  Lincolnshire MPs were also on board with this 
and understood the challenges and this would be taken to Government once a new 
Minister was in place.  A significant amount of work had been carried out in the past 5 
years and a good case had been compiled.   
 
The Leader advised Members that separating the rates required primary legislation.   
 
In response to Members’ request for further information it was requested that a Member 
Briefing be held and the Chief Executives of the Borough’s two IDB be invited to address 
Members and this was agreed.  
 

Action: LB 
Arrange a Member Briefing as requested 

 
Members noted that the Council had received grants from Government not to increase 
council tax in previous years and that if the Council had increased council tax in those 
years it would have more money available now to help address the savings target.   
 
In response to questions, the Accountancy Manager - Revenues & Systems explained 
that the Council was working within the cap on council tax increase to avoid a 
referendum and that Cabinet had approved the report.  The maximum that council tax 
could be increased by without triggering a referendum was 3% or a minimum of £5. 
 
Some Members expressed concerns that families on low income were already 
struggling to pay council tax and other bills.  Council tax support only covered 75% of 
their bills.  It was felt that council tax should be kept as low as possible and that the 
Council should be exerting more pressure on Government.   
 
The Portfolio Holder said he would willingly agree not to increase council tax if it were 
possible; however, the proposal was to keep the increase as low as possible and he 
would work hard with officers to endeavour to ensure that the savings would not impact 
on services, but they needed time to do so. 
 
As for the suggestion of using reserves, as stated in the report, specific reserves were 
set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for 
unexpected events.  Given the risks and uncertainties facing both the local and national 
economy, the Council was committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, whilst 
ensuring resources were available to enable efficient service delivery.   
 
During debate, two main views were expressed. Some Members felt that the Council 
should consider increasing council tax as much as possible to safeguard council 
services and reassure Members that the challenge of the £850,000 savings target could 
be met. However, there was also a view that the increase should be as low as possible 
because of the impact on low-income families who were already struggling to pay 
increasing bills.  
 
Vote: 6 for, 5 against.  
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
6 February 2020 

 

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet that consideration be given to an 
increase in the Borough Council’s precept by closer to the maximum this year to 
help meet the challenges of 2021/22 and protect as many of the services that the 
public rely on and expect the council to deliver. 

 
[Councillor Richard Austin left the meeting at 8.30 pm] 
 
35   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members discussed the work programme. 
 

Action: AF 
1. Give consideration to a future agenda item on privately rented housing, the 

Lincolnshire Housing Partnership (LHP) and tenants. 
2. Invite representatives from the United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) 

regarding the provision of health care and quality of services at Pilgrim Hospital and 
include consideration of recent reports on children’s tooth decay in the Boston area. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.38 pm 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

4 June 2020 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tracey Abbott, Richard Austin BEM, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 
Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Neill Hastie, Jonathan Noble and Judith Skinner 
 
In attendance: Councillors Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, Brian Rush and Peter Watson 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillors Paul Skinner, Leader, and Nigel Welton, Deputy Leader 
 
Officers –  
Democratic Services Manager, Senior Democratic Services Officer and Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
Guests –  
Mr Mark Edgell, Principal Advisor at the Local Government Association, and Mr Trevor 
Holden, Managing Director for Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils 
 
36   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Tom Ashton, Alan Bell and Frank 
Pickett.  Councillors Tracey Abbott, Paul Goodale and Judith Skinner, respectively, were 
substituting for those Members. 
 
37   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
It was declared that Councillors Richard Austin, Peter Bedford, Anne Dorrian, Paul 
Goodale and Paul Skinner served on the Chief Officer Employment Panel and had 
attended the panel’s meeting on 20th May and had considered a report on the proposed 
Strategic Alliance in terms of the sharing of Statutory Officers and had made a 
recommendation to Full Council, which would be considered on 10th June 2020. 
 
The three Statutory Officers, Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 
Officer, declared an interest in the report, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey 
District Council Strategic Alliance, as it affected their employment, and all confirmed that 
they had not provided any professional advice to the Council in respect of the matters 
contained within the report.  Having declared their interest in advance, the Officers were 
not in attendance at the meeting. 
 
38   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
39   BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL AND EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner presented a report, which set out a proposal for the creation of a 
strategic alliance between Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District Council, 
including the sharing of statutory officers of Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and 
Section 151 Officer.  

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

 
Each Council would retain its distinct and special identity, decision making powers and 
accountability.  The talent and experience of each authority’s officers would be 
combined to build capacity and deploy resources necessary to transform service quality 
across the board.  
 
The goal was to deliver better outcomes for local people at a significantly lower cost 
than that which could be achieved if the authorities were to continue to operate 
separately.  Joint working on the planning and delivery of services would also mitigate 
pressure on the Council’s budgets and command greater influence in the allocation of 
resources from Central Government, the Lincolnshire Enterprise Partnership and others.  
 
Joint working would also give the councils a stronger voice in any process to reshape 
local government in Lincolnshire, promoting a common agenda with a single voice. They 
would gain experience of managing strategic change quickly and effectively and there 
could also be a longer term possibility for the strategic alliance to grow in numbers, 
giving rise to promote a significant part of Lincolnshire, should the future bring 
consideration of alternative structures. 
 
There was no settled blueprint for change.  The final shape of joint working and the pace 
of service transformation would be subject to agreement by both councils.  Members 
were invited to agree that the transformation should begin now, with the establishment 
of a Joint Statutory Officer team to advise and assist both authorities on how to ‘kick 
start’ change and merge workforces.  
 
Both Council shared characteristics.  A relatively small officer corps with limited revenue 
and capital resources to tackle the multitude of challenges each faced; historic towns 
with extensive rural surroundings; relatively narrow economic base; Towns’ Fund 
investment, tourism and rich built heritage; investment in transport and other key 
infrastructure which was a significant risk to the achievement of each council’s 
ambitions, finance and resources.  
 
The financial pressures facing local government were outlined, the significant cuts in 
Central Government Grants which were unlikely to be reversed in the foreseeable future 
and limited opportunities to offset pressures, combined with increased demands for key 
services.  The financial pressure facing both councils was likely to become more acute 
in the short term due to the loss of revenue and additional unplanned expenditure 
caused by the need to tackle the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
One of the consequences of the financial structure imposed on councils was the 
pressure Government was placing on local authorities to scale up by adopting 
countywide unitary and mayoral structures.  Past experience in Lincolnshire suggested 
this would be difficult to achieve, and a better approach would be to build alliances from 
the ‘bottom up’. This would allow resources to be shared quickly and effectively, 
reducing pressure on budgets, and giving those partners a stronger voice in the 
allocation of scarce resources from central government and the shaping of new unitary 
structures. 
 
The immediate potential for joint working between the councils was identified as: 
1. Seamless, uninterrupted planning and delivery of services to a community whose 

common needs were not primarily shaped or dictated by administrative boundaries. 

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

2. Economies of scale with the potential to dramatically free up financial resources and 
deliver significant reductions in the management overhead, freeing more resources 
to be directed to frontline staff delivering customer service. 

3. Sharing of existing best practice to improve both councils’ services. 
4. Sharing of existing innovative ways of working which would provide an opportunity 

for career development and advancement for staff. 
5. Opportunities for better coordinated and more effective joint working with other 

sectors. 
6. The potential to develop and promote joint business cases for major investment that 

would assist both councils, such as the delivery of improvements to the A16 and 
coastal flood defence. 

7. Greater potential to procure and take advantage of new technology more 
economically and efficiently.  

8. A positive response to the councils’ peer reviews, which highlighted the imperative 
need to transform services through effective partnership working. 

 
The key to realising the opportunities quickly was an effective political leadership across 
both authorities served by a unified officer corps, led and made fit for purpose by a Joint 
Chief Executive.  This was a proven concept that had worked well, and could be 
implemented with pace and minimum risk where there was a joint political will to do so.  
 
The first step in the process would be to appoint a Joint Chief Executive, and it was 
proposed this would be Mr. Robert Barlow, the Chief Executive of East Lindsey DC, 
effective from 1 July 2020.  Mr. Barlow would continue to be employed by East Lindsey 
DC and seconded to Boston BC under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972.  
Simultaneously, Mr. Phil Drury would leave his post as Chief Executive of Boston BC. 
 
In order to effect the rapid and effective implementation of joint working the Joint Chief 
Executive would have the power to appoint to all Management posts (management 
review) following the agreement of a new management structure supported by both 
Leaders.  It was anticipated this would be a three month process with an aspiration of 
minimising disruption to the employers and employees.  The appointments would be 
made from the existing pool of officers of both authorities.  Any associated costs of 
redundancy or retirement would be met in the proportions 67% paid by East Lindsey DC 
and 33% by Boston BC and repaid in the same proportions to each authority within the 
first eight months of the alliance. 
 
In order to ensure there was effective and coordinated governance of both councils from 
the start, it was further proposed that a Joint Monitoring Officer and Joint Section 151 
Officer should be appointed and it was recommended that Michelle Sacks and Paul 
Julian, both currently employed in those roles for Boston BC, be appointed to those 
roles.  The current Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer for East Lindsey DC had 
agreed to stand down from those roles.  
 
The Joint Chief Executive, supported by the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer, 
would then carry out further restructuring over a longer period, in consultation with and 
subject to the approval of each authority, within a new performance framework and on a 
service-by-service basis.  The period of review was expected to cover twenty-four 
months, indicating a slow integration for the majority of employees.  
 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

The financial implications of exit costs were significant, but would be quickly recovered 
through the long-term savings arising from the change.  Provision would be made for 
total costs of approximately £750,000, split 67% East Lindsey DC and 33% Boston BC.  
It was not expected there would be many other significant costs as a result of 
redundancy or retirement of other management posts.  However, prudent provision had 
been made against year-one savings.  
 
A judicious target to reduce the combined budget of the two councils was considered to 
be £1.2m over the first 12 months.  The Joint Chief Executive would be charged with 
delivering the saving without a reduction in performance or service quality.  If was further 
suggested that a provisional target to deliver savings across the partnership from all 
budgets should be set in the sum of £600,000, to be achieved from month 13 to 24 of 
the strategic alliance. 
 
The savings achieved from the first phase of restructuring would be secured as far as 
possible by savings from long-term vacancies, churn and the reduction of the 
management overhead.  Any adjustment to baseline costs or savings would be shared 
according to population numbers and ratio (33% BBC, 67% ELDC). 
 
The strategic alliance would not affect the continuing political autonomy and decision 
making of the separate councils.  A formal review of the alliance and combined 
workforce would be carried out by a Joint Scrutiny Committee in January 2021 and 
January 2022. 
 
Quarterly joint Cabinet/Executive Meetings would be timetabled for developing 
partnership structures, processes and priorities, and oversight of the success and 
delivery of financial and performance targets.   Subject to a positive review of the 
partnership, and adopting the logic that had driven the proposal, consideration could be 
given to introducing a further partner in the future.  
 
The strategic alliance was built on a prudent business case, similar to those achieved by 
other comparable partnerships.  A financial savings model was attached to the report at 
Appendix B, which identified potential savings of £15.4M over a 10 year period, in the 
proportions of East Lindsey DC 66 % £10.3M and Boston Borough Council 33 percent, 
£5.1M.  In order to allow both Council’s Section 151 Officers to remain independent from 
the report, Broadland and South Norfolk Councils had supported in the provision of 
independent financial advice, which was appended to the report.  
 
In view of the potential conflict of interest of the Council’s statutory officers, Eversheds-
Sutherland (International) LLP, Solicitors with substantial experience of Local 
Government and Employment Law, had been engaged to review the report and 
Memorandum of Agreement and confirmed that the approach indicated was lawful.  The 
advice received was set out in full at Appendix C of the report and incorporated into the 
Memorandum of Agreement, which was attached at Appendix A.  
 
The approach contemplated to take the alliance forward relied on a process known as 
mixed scanning.  The Joint Chief Executive and his Chief Officer team would work 
closely with Councillors of both authorities to identify the outcomes that were required to 
be delivered at the end of the process and the procedures that would have to be put in 
place to achieve those outcomes.    
 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

Those matters having been established, and jointly agreed, the establishment would be 
created in stages, with it being explicitly understood that the process would throw up 
problems and challenges, which Management and Councillors would identify and solve 
to arrive at new working arrangements swiftly and pragmatically. 
 
After the presentation, the Leader paid tribute to the hard work and talent of staff and 
said they deserved the security that an alliance would provide.  The proposal was not to 
take the alliance forward the “Boston way” or the “East Lindsey way”, but the best way 
and the Leader pointed out that a number of services were already shared between the 
councils. 
 
The Leader then referred back to the recommendations, as set out in the report, which 
had been made by Cabinet on 27th May and would be considered by Full Council on 10th 
June 2020. 
 
The Chairman then invited his guests, Mr Mark Edgell, Principal Advisor at the Local 
Government Association, and Mr Trevor Holden, Managing Director for Broadland and 
South Norfolk District Councils, to address the Committee. 
 
In summary, Mr Edgell addressed the Committee as follows. 
 
The proposal was interesting and clear. The Leader had described clear ambitions and 
expectations for Boston and beyond, and that the best way to achieve it was through 
joint working with East Lindsey District Council. 
 
The proposal reflected the outcome of the Council’s peer review challenge in terms of 
transforming services and working with other authorities to establish a leadership role 
within the sub-region; the proposal would achieve that. 
 
Local authorities had lost a significant amount of external funding, particularly since 
2010, in terms of government grants funding, business rates, fees and charges and so 
on. All local authorities needed to look at working more efficiently and the pandemic had 
made this consideration even more necessary. 
 
The cost of overheads had to be examined, for example management costs. Many 
authorities were reducing their senior management costs by reducing the number of 
tiers and posts. However, this only took matters so far and more innovative ways were 
sometimes needed.  For example, some district/borough authorities were removing the 
position of Chief Executive and having two directors instead; others were sharing Chief 
Executives.  There were many examples across the country and many examples of 
shared management teams that were performing well, such as Broadland and South 
Norfolk District Councils. 
 
Costs were shared, but also in addition they achieved: 

 A critical geological mass, providing a stronger voice to achieve ambitions. 

 Economies of scale and avoidance of duplication of work. 

 More resilience through a larger, combined management team. 

 In the long term, the ability to attract higher quality candidates for jobs because 
positions would be more attractive. 

 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

In conclusion Mr Edgell said that the proposals were exciting, offering significant savings 
and pointed to the many other authorities succeeding in such alliances. 
 
Trevor Holden, Managing Director of Broadland and South Norfolk District 
Councils, then addressed the Committee, in summary as follows. 
 
Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils had written a feasibility study in 2018, 
leading to a recruitment process and his appointment. The feasibility study was 
comprehensive, with a roadmap of where the alliance was going and how it was to be 
achieved. It involved many decisions, points of learning, set out terms and became a 
clear statement of what the strategic alliance was.  
 
The result was one officer team serving two distinct political Councils. The assumption 
was made against redundancies. It was an opportunity for staff, as teams were larger 
and allowed more possibilities of specialising. It was partially financially driven because 
finances were uncertain.  It would achieve £8.6 million savings over the term of the 
medium term financial plan. The study also set out the Chief Executive appointment, 
which was achieved through a competition leading to his appointment. 
 
A strategic alliance should be seen as a journey, along which much would be learnt.   
 
The journey involved drawing up a plan, ensuring the plan was right and ensuring the 
financial model was right. The key determinant was how people thought about the 
approach taken; this resulted in how people felt about the process and therefore how 
they acted going forward. 
 
The level of change being embarked upon, even if the financial purpose was very clear, 
did nothing to detract from the human journey.  The emotional journey was difficult and 
you had to ensure that you took people with you.  
 
The process would give rise to arguments about minor matters, such as phone 
numbers. Although the Councils were not going to merge, it was key to establish a 
domain name, sort out telephones and IT support services from the outset. 
 
The debate needed to be kept at the level of what the strategy was and whether the 
alliance was delivering it. It was essential to take Councillors and officers on the journey; 
some would be excited, some would want to be prepared to wait and see how this 
progressed, some would not be happy. Ownership of the plan had to be held by all 
Councillors; disruptive views would not be helpful. 
 
Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils moved quickly to single terms and 
conditions and a structure in less than 12 months. They started the new year with 
recognised job descriptions with terms and conditions giving parity across the two 
authorities. Some were on South Norfolk and some on Broadland Council contracts, 
which was important, because if they were ever to disaggregate, employment law 
overrode everything else. 
 
The feasibility study, where possible, allowed process and practices that made sense 
and made it easier for officers to process. It was a “big ask” to align processes and 
practices, because there was always more than one right way; this meant there had to 
be a lot of compromise and it was important that everyone recognised this. 

Page 10



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

 
If there were to be any “red lines” they should be in the feasibility study and they should 
be adhered to. In 18 months Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils had retained 
services, improved them and saved money. They had significant influence within the 
county and they had two leaders who often aligned, but remained independent when 
necessary. 
 
In conclusion, Mr Holden said that a strategic alliance was very exciting, but although it 
was relatively straightforward to put in place a plan and financial business case, it was 
how people felt and acted that would set the speed at which it proceeded and 
succeeded. 
 
Committee Members then put forward various questions and observations to the 
Leader, which he addressed as follows, in summary.   
 
The Council would always have a choice about which services would work jointly. 
Boston and East Lindsey already shared services: the CCTV service, antisocial 
behaviour team, building control and, to a certain extent, the refuse service. The alliance 
would make savings and provide resilience and capacity in the workforce, which was 
essential. 
 
The councils would have a common management structure and, after two years, it 
would be a combined service, but it was a long journey getting there and it was crucial 
that people were committed to it. Once established, the alliance would be scrutinised 
constantly through quarterly monitoring performance etc. so it would be controlled. 
 
No other authorities were interested in considering an alliance with the Council; they 
were waiting to see if this proposal was successful. 
 
The position of the three Statutory Officers would always be subject to performance. 
 
The figures in the report included all costs, including redundancy payments, but specific 
costs could not be discussed at this stage because of employment law. 
The strategic alliance was a proposal and until it was decided nothing else could be 
discussed. The proposal had been presented in this form in order for it to be fully in the 
public domain. These matters would have to be discussed after a decision was made at 
Full Council on 10th of June. Such details would have to be on confidential papers. 
 
The proposal included a Joint Strategy Board, the Members of which would be involved 
in decision-making going forward. 
 
Performance data would be set by the new Joint Chief Executive, but Boston’s 
performance criteria, e.g. fly tipping to be cleared within two days, would not change. 
 
The legal advice obtained had been followed with respect to consultation with staff.  
Question and answer sessions had been held with staff over the past weeks and most 
questions answered.  The proposal had been shared with Members as quickly as 
possible and question and answer sessions had been held straightaway, though not all 
Members had attended.  
 
It was proposed to retain the legal advisers subject to the receipt of a satisfactory fee 

Page 11



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

proposal. This meant they would ask for competitive quotes. Such costs would be 
covered by the savings in the financial model. 
 
The Financial Business Case had been compiled by professional officers. The figure of 
£1.2 million to be saved over the first 12 months would be achieved from savings from 
staffing costs, i.e. from the management restructure, unfilled vacancies and the normal 
turnover of staff, and this figure had been verified by financial and legal advisers. The 
first full year in the financial business case was 2021/22. The first column, showing what 
would remain of the year 2020/21, was actually only a 6-month period. 
 
The Deputy Leader added that the report explained that a provisional target delivering a 
further saving across the partnership from the budget should be set in the sum of 
£600,000. The financial business model set out in Appendix B showed the gross savings 
less the cost of redundancy for the Statutory Officers. 
 
The Leader confirmed that the only meeting he had had with the Leader and Deputy 
Leader of East Lindsey District Council had taken place on 4th March 2020. 
 
The Deputy Leader listed the dates of meetings he had attended with East Lindsey’s 
Chief Executive and Boston’s Chief Executive since May 2019.  
 
The Deputy Leader then responded to questions as follows.   
 
The report could not have been shared with Members at an earlier stage because, 
originally, it had not been written as the best case for Boston.  It had been reworked until 
it became feasible for both councils. The matter had been published in the Council’s 
Forward Plan one week before the publication of the Cabinet agenda. Private individual 
details had been taken out so that the full report could be put before Full Council in the 
public domain.  
 
There was no legislative requirement for a public consultation, which would cost around 
£250,000 at a time when the Council resources were stretched.  
 
The Council had to take this opportunity or be left behind. If there were delays, East 
Lindsey might seek a partner elsewhere. This process should have been followed 13 
years previously; if Members had done so they would have saved a significant amount 
of money, ensured improved quality services, protected frontline staff and protected the 
town.  
 
In-depth negotiations had been carried out in order to achieve the best deal for Boston 
in terms of the percentage share of costs and savings etc. This was the best deal 
possible and if there were delays the Council would need to pay full exit costs and the 
Government would step in. The Council needed to shape its own future. 
 
Mr Edgell and Mr Holden then responded to questions as follows. 
 
Mr Holden explained that the Broadland and South Norfolk’s consultation had taken 
place before he was appointed, but it was a short time period. It would make a 
significant difference whether Councillors and staff looked at the proposal in a positive or 
negative light. The report had been signed in June 2018 and he had been appointed at 
the end of the year. Allowing time did not achieve changes in viewpoints. It was a 

Page 12



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

journey and people would be supported along that journey but they needed to get on 
board with it in the first place. There was no correlation between the period of time taken 
and success at getting people on board; it simply extended the journey. 
 
Mr Edgell agreed. Time was not the best way to measure the success of the 
implementation of an alliance. The key matter was to decide whether it was right or 
wrong for the authorities. Discussions behind-the-scenes ensured agreements were 
reached and all due diligence carried out. The longer the time before proceeding, the 
longer uncertainty was allowed to continue, which made it difficult for people. The key 
matter was to move as quickly as possible with the right mind-set. 
 
In response to a question about impartiality, Mr Holden explained that had been asked 
for his advice and he offered it without agenda. The time line of the strategic alliance of 
Broadland and South Norfolk District Councils was from the completion of a feasibility 
study in June 2018, then an immediate recruitment scheme resulting in his recruitment 
in October that year. He took up that appointment in January 2019. 
 
The emotional journey of all involved had to be worked on. The process was different for 
different people. If more time was taken to create an alliance people started to believe it 
would not really happen, which could result in anger or lack of engagement. It was the 
responsibility of the Leaders to ease its passage through. 
 
Mr Holden went on to confirm that the Councillors had been aware of the feasibility 
study from the beginning and that it was a collaborative piece of work. The Leader, Chief 
Executive and chief officers had been involved and this had resulted in a buy-in to the 
process. Then the feasibility study had been signed off by both Councils. It was a 
legitimate way to do it, and the study was then used as a reference document through 
the later stages of implantation. The medium term financial plan would not have allowed 
a lengthy timespan. 
 
Could they have done anything better? When they had set off to build the single officer 
team, they had focussed on the ‘Two Councils, One Team’ message, and putting both 
Councils’ logos on documentation.  Mr Holden felt they should have given more 
consideration to promotion of the individual brands of each council.  They were now very 
alive to this, ensuring that each was recognised as independent, albeit serviced by a 
single officer team. 
 
During debate, Members raised the following main concerns: 
 

 The speed and lack of detail of the proposed alliance. 
 

 The lack of consultation with staff and Councillors, particularly as it was so important 
to have everyone on board. 

 

 The lack of a detailed financial business case and discrepancies between the figures 
provided.   

 

 The costs involved in appointing the joint Statutory Officers and the proposal to 
appoint East Lindsey District Council’s Chief Executive to the post of Joint Chief 

Page 13



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

Executive without a recruitment process.   
 

In summary, specific comments included: 
 
Although not against a strategic alliance in principle, this was an enormous decision and 
Councillors were being asked to make it without adequate consultation, it having been 
announced only three weeks previously. 
 
The two boroughs were distinct, East Lindsey being a coastal area and Boston being 
urban.  Other local authorities should be approached to find the best fit for Boston. The 
Council needed to find a partner, as it could not survive in the long-term on its own, but 
there were doubts that this proposal was the right one.  The Council’ peer review had 
stated that it should have a strategy for shared services arrangements that should be 
planned and not opportunistic.  
 
There had been no reference to the negatives experienced by authorities that had 
implemented strategic alliances. The feasibility study on which the alliance of Broadland 
and South Norfolk District Councils was based was a lengthy document that had taken 
time and effort to establish what the proposal would look like. It was important that the 
time-frame was not so fast that it upset people and set them against the proposal. It was 
essential to involve all parties, as this would be much more likely to result in success.  
 
Havering and Newham Council had taken seven years to implement an alliance, 
beginning with the introduction of an IT platform and following a careful process along 
which all sides were consulted and involved all parties. 
 
Clarification of the financial savings model was requested, as the figures were not 
convincing. There were doubts that the savings from staffing costs were achievable. If 
the savings were to be achieved through the loss of 33 posts within the first 12 months, 
how could this be achieved when the full integration of all staff might take two years. The 
Council had a duty of care to staff to be treated fairly and decently and the welfare of 
junior members of staff in particular was a concern. 
 
The Members of the Chief Officer Employment Panel that had considered the matter of 
the appointment of the three Statutory Officers were extremely concerned about 
potential costs and legal difficulties.  The Panel had concluded that the costs were so 
high they did not wish to proceed with the appointment of the three Statutory Officers, 
particularly with respect to the Joint Chief Executive who was unknown to them.  
 
Other authorities had gone through the proper process to appoint to the Chief Executive 
position, whereas Members were being asked to simply accept the appointment of East 
Lindsey’s Chief Executive who they did not know.  Once the alliance was established 
there should be an open day for applicants to appoint a Joint Chief Executive who would 
be chosen on merit. 
 
The report implied that the outgoing Statutory Officers would be entitled to redundancy 
payments and that the Joint Chief Executive could have a salary increase once the 
wider management restructure had been put in place. Members needed assurance that 
the full details of the costs of redundancies and legal risks be made available to 
Councillors before the Council meeting on 10th June in confidential papers. 
 

Page 14



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

There was concern about the costs of retaining the legal advisers and that the legal 
advice had not been followed. For example, the allocation of pension liabilities and how 
contributions and deficits would be allocated on the transfer of staff within the shared 
management team had not been costed and referred to in a schedule to the agreement. 
In addition, it was also asserted that the advice had not been followed with respect to 
ensuring detailed, timely and sensitive consultation with staff; an effective clear, 
transparent and consistent communication strategy; and Member approval supported by 
a business case for the strategic alliance. 
 
The code of conduct was central to how the Council operated and would have to be 
considered carefully, in particular the section stating that the Chief Executive had 
exclusive jurisdiction to deal with any staffing matter. In fact, the Joint Chief Executive 
could override the code. 
 
The Leader responded to concerns regarding the appointment of the Joint Chief 
Executive   
 
Originally, the proposal had been to select one of the Chief Executives from the two 
authorities. East Lindsey’s Chief Executive had been appointed over a year previously 
as part of a national recruitment exercise at which, it was said, he had excelled over the 
other candidates. 
 
The performance of the Joint Chief Executive would be monitored and would be 
answerable to the executive of both authorities in terms of delivery, which would not be 
an easy challenge and would involve a significant amount of work. 
 
Other Members voiced different views, including: 
 
It was important to look to the long-term and, although there were risks, Members had to 
consider, if nothing changed, how long it would be before there had to be cuts to key 
services.  The Council could have been criticised if it had not moved quickly enough and 
this was the right timeframe.  A collaborative partnership approach was welcome.  It 
would involve a significant amount of work and it was essential to proceed quickly in 
order not to miss this opportunity.  
 
The benefits of an alliance would be in the retention and improvement of services. The 
identity of the Council and the town would be retained and there would be proper 
investment for Boston. The performance of existing shared services was reassuring for 
the public. Both Councils had great expertise and the alliance would maximise this.  
 
The proposed model had worked for other authorities, independent advice had been 
sought, and it would result in the Council retaining its unique identity with control of its 
finances and decision-making. Public consultation was not required by the Council’s 
constitution and was not feasible because of the significant costs.  
 
The proposal was exciting and there were no alternative ideas for achieving the savings 
needed. It was motivating and would move the Council forward. A proposal had been 
put forward years previously and it was not known why it had not been taken forward. If 
it had, they would now be reaping the benefits. 
 
The Council was required to set a balanced budget and using reserves did not help 

Page 15



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 
 

going forward. If the borough was merged into a unitary authority it would have no voice. 
The Council needed to be fit for purpose and they all needed to work together for the 
good of Boston and see the whole picture. 
 
The Council had previously had a part-time Chief Executive who performed well and the 
present Chief Executive had been engaged without going through a recruitment 
process. 
 
Change was imminent and the Council had to move forward quickly for the sake of the 
future of the people of the town. 
 
Non-Committee Members were then invited to comment and did so, in summary, 
as follows. 
 
There was no objection to sharing services, but the right partner had to be sought. 
This report was written from the viewpoint of East Lindsey District Council. There were 
two other authorities with adjacent boundaries and the Council had established joint 
local plan with South Holland District Council.  
 
The proposal had to be looked at fully and Boston had not had that opportunity. The 
reputation of both Councils depended on its success and it was not clear that the 
financial savings model was sound.  
 
It was disappointing that opposition Members had not been included in the consideration 
of the proposal prior to its announcement. The public and all Members should have 
been consulted.  
 
There were concerns about the time the Statutory Officers would be have available to 
spend working for the Council, particularly with respect to the Town Deal.  
 
There was insufficient detail to make a decision, in particular in terms of finance and 
risks, the process was far too quick and the Chief Executive position should go to 
advert. 
 
Following debate, it was proposed and seconded that there be at least a 6-month 
period before proceeding with the proposals for a Strategic Alliance. 
 
It was then proposed and seconded that the recommendations contained in the report 
be put. 
 
The original proposal was put to the vote and, with the Chairman’s casting vote, it was: 
 

RESOLVED  
 
That it be recommended to Full Council that: 
 
1. This Council agrees that a Strategic Alliance needs to be the best fit for 

Boston, therefore, at this time we propose at least a 6-month period before 
proceeding with the proposals before us. 

 

Page 16



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 June 2020 

 

2. This Council currently has sufficient resources to maintain adequate levels of 
service delivery and to balance the budget in 2021/22 and given those facts, we 
propose the following: 

 

 That exploratory discussions with Elected Members and Officers should 

continue for at least 6 months; 

 That Scrutiny committees are kept fully involved and appraised of all such 

discussions; 

 That any future decisions are made after full consultation with elected 
members, along with the residents of the Borough of Boston. 

 

 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 10.10 pm 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (CORPORATE AND 
COMMUNITY) 

DATE: 27 AUGUST 

SUBJECT: DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES FOR CONSULTATION 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR NIGEL WELTON, DEPUTY LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: JAMES GILBERT, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – ORGANISATION AND 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
The Cabinet has been working to develop a vision for Boston for their current term and beyond.   
 
Appendix A to this report proposes a draft Corporate Strategy/priorities.  
 
The Strategy is brought to Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee for the opportunity to 
input into the priorities prior to it going to Cabinet on 9 September for agreement to consult with the 
community. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee provides comments to support the Strategy’s development. 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The existing Corporate Strategy requires a refresh to ensure clear, strategic priorities for the Council 
are in place, and input through the scrutiny process is an important aspect of the Strategy’s 
development. 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None. 
 

 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 1



REPORT 
 
1.0 The draft Corporate Strategy can be found at Appendix A. 

It should be noted that some of the priorities are a longer-term vision and will not be completed 

by May 2024, however, key building blocks would be put into place to move towards these 

aspirations. 

 

2.0 Once feedback is received from Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee, this will be 

considered by the Portfolio Holder before a draft Strategy is taken to Cabinet in September for 

agreement to consult.  The public consultation will be to seek final comments before the Strategy 

comes forward for formal adoption. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The draft Corporate Strategy sets out a high-level ambition for the term of the Council and beyond 

and feedback is sought from the Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy will be aligned to reflect the agreed priorities of the 
Council. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/a  
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Strategy identifies a strategic priority focused on climate change. 
 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
None 

Page 20



 
CONSULTATION 
 
This paper presents the draft Strategy to Corporate and Community Scrutiny Committee for input 
prior to a wider public consultation.  
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Draft Corporate Strategy 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

LGA Corporate Peer Review http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-
content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-
Peer-Review.pdf 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

 
A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 

 

Page 21

http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf
http://s4fzas59p.gb-02.live-paas.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Boston-Borough-Council-Peer-Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
DRAFT  

Corporate Strategy  

2020 to 2024 

 

Proud of our Borough’s history, ambitious for its future 

APPENDIX A 

P
age 23



Introduction  

Welcome to Boston Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy. 

This Strategy sets out the Council’s direction of travel over the coming four years; identifying where the Council will focus its efforts and resources to improve the Borough for 

our community. 

This Strategy has been produced at a time when the Council and community are beginning the long process of recovering from Covid-19; at a time when we have an 

opportunity to secure up to £25m of Government funding for regeneration in our Borough;  and at a time when we have commenced a strategic alliance with East Lindsey 

District Council that will enable us to save £5m over the next ten years, whilst also improving services to those we serve. 

As a Council we are ambitious for Boston.  We will continue to deliver high quality services that our community needs in their everyday lives, whilst at the same time looking 

to the future with a view to addressing some of the key challenges the area faces. 

Whilst this Strategy sets out what we aspire to achieve, it is recognised that we will need to be both flexible and adaptable as the environment around us continues to change.   

We can’t do everything we want to on our own.  We recognise that to achieve our goals and maximise the opportunities for Boston we will need to work with new and 

existing partners.   

Our Strategy focuses on four priorities: 

1. People  
2. Future prosperity and growth  
3. Environmental awareness and accountability 

4. Delivering high quality services and maximising the use of technology to support residents. 

We’d like to thank everyone who has contributed to the development of this Strategy.   

As a Council and community, we should all be immensely proud of Boston as a place to live, work and visit, and we all have a role to play in championing Boston and 

everything it has to offer. 

Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader of the Council     Rob Barlow, Chief Executive 

  

P
age 24



About Boston 

The Place 

Google “Boston” and you’ll end up in a world-famous city in America. But Google “Boston, Lincolnshire” and you’ll end up in the much-more historic location to which its 
namesake across the ocean owes its existence. The original Boston stands proud in the Lincolnshire fens, its place in history marked out for miles around by the famous 
world-beating “Stump”. 
 
Boston’s status and wealth led to the construction of its parish church on a grand scale. During the 12th and 13th centuries Boston was a thriving port, and by the 14th 
century Boston had become the fourth-richest provincial town in England. A reminder of those great times, the tower of St. Botolph’s, affectionately known as the “Stump”, 
remains one of the east of England’s most enduring and imposing landmarks. 
 
Boston has seen a rapid increase in its population in recent years with the growth mainly from incoming eastern European migrants. This has brought challenges in terms of 
rapid increase but also significant benefits in the provision of a workforce for local employers. ONS estimates the Borough of Boston population at 68,500. 
 
The economy of the Borough of Boston is predominately influenced by four sectors which are agriculture/ horticulture, engineering, food processing/ manufacturing and 
logistics that have developed due to their close proximity to some of the most fertile land in the country. 
 
The town of Boston is the administrative centre and the main economic hub for both retail and commercial activity. The broader borough geography includes 18 parishes, 
each of which has its own distinct economy. Functionally, these settlements have strong relationships with the town of Boston in terms of economic activity.  
 
The Borough of Boston’s business base by VAT/PAYE activity and size is nearly 2,200 with 1,855 falling in the 0 to 10 employee band. However, it also has 15 businesses 
including Bakkavor, Freshtime, Turners Distribution, Mason Brothers Distribution, Pilgrim Foods that are within the 250+ employee band, all creating opportunities in sector-
related supply-chain management. Other large employers include Boston College and NHS Pilgrim General Hospital.   There is a consistently low employment rate in Boston 
(lower than the national average).  
 
As the main economic centre, Boston also has a fully operational Port servicing the UK with coiled aluminium and steel for both the automotive and construction industries 
and raw materials such as timber and paper. The cumulative effect of economic growth across all sectors is recorded at just under £1.3billion Gross Value Added (GVA) in 
2017.  
 
The Borough has a well-established business base that has created a resilient place of work, a strong place to invest and coupled with an affordable location for home 
ownership is now delivering confidence within the construction sector as a place to develop, capturing further economic potential and accelerating growth.  
  

P
age 25



 
Boston Borough Council 
 
Boston is a Borough Council in a two-tier area with six other district councils and Lincolnshire County Council.   The council has 30 elected members and operates the Leader 
and Cabinet executive model of governance.  
 
The Council employs around 300 people. 
 
A Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council came into effect from 1 July, 2020. This Alliance sees both Councils operate with a shared management team.  Both 
councils continue to retain their own identity and to be accountable to their local communities, however, sharing expertise, teams and resources will allow the Council to 
make significant savings. By coming together as we have, we will jointly save £15.4m over the next 10 years and be able to improve the delivery of services to local people.  
 
The move will also provide both Councils with a stronger voice when it comes to securing future Government growth funding and influencing how services are delivered 
locally in the future. 
 
 

  

P
age 26



PRIORITY 1 – PEOPLE FOCUSED (OUR MAIN PRIORITY) 

Boston – live, work and visit 
 
Amazing Place to Live 

We want Boston to be the place where people want to live, a place where they can thrive in their local communities, feel safe, secure, healthy and welcome. 

We will: 

 Develop and grow community confidence by maintaining our community safety/development resource when our non-recurrent funding ends. 

 Invest and support growth to meet local housing needs by co-funding affordable housing delivery. 

 Provide affordable and accessible leisure opportunities for all. 

 Work in partnership to deliver improved infrastructure, such as transport networks (and the associated traffic management). 

Fantastic Place to Work 

We want people to THINK BOSTON, think business.   

We will: 

 Make Boston a healthy and safe place to work. 

 Promote growth and infrastructure including improved rail, road networks and waterways. 

 Promote Boston’s economy, industry and opportunities. 

Memorable place to visit 

Boston is a diverse and vibrant town to explore and discover, with a range of quality national and independent shops, wonderful dining experiences and a unique history and 

heritage.  We want to build on this to further develop the visitor economy and position Boston as a leading visitor destination 

We will: 

 Manage and enhance the heritage assets of Boston to increase tourism. 

 Seek new opportunities to encourage visitors to Boston through culture, arts, events and sport. 

 Increase the promotion of Boston as a visitor destination and improve its public spaces and water level management. 

P
age 27



PRIORITY 2 – FUTURE PROSPERITY, REGENERATION AND INCLUSIVE GROWTH 

We want to grow Boston’s economy to ensure it remains a thriving town where people choose to live, work and visit.  In doing so it is important we understand the needs of 

our communities and achieve growth in a way that is inclusive. 

This includes ensuring the Council is fit for purpose and maintains its robust financial governance, remains financially sustainable and continues its journey towards becoming 

truly commercial. 

Sustainable Economic Growth 

We will: 

 Support existing business  

 Ensure potential investors recognise Boston as a Borough open for investment. 

 Signpost opportunities for funding, partnering, learning skills and business growth support. 

 Promote skills and enterprise through partnerships with education providers and businesses.  

 Use available evidence to inform the decisions we make about growth initiatives.  

Inward investment 

We will: 

 Promote and facilitate inward investment by working with strategic partners to make Boston a location of choice. 

 Work with Boston Town Deal Board to prepare the Investment Plan and interventions and deliver the identified projects. 

 Develop the bold investment plan and explore delivery models for the PE21 ambition. 

 Equip the town centre to adapt to behavioural change and economic growth more generally including developing the retail experience. 

 Implement the Local Plan and undertake specific master planning and policy reviews to support delivery of growth within the Borough. 

Promote Boston's potential 

We will: 

 Promote Boston regionally, nationally and internationally as a place to live, work and visit. 

 To continue to develop existing commercial and other arrangements to further promote Boston internationally. 

 Promote trade and tourism opportunities created by the multinational community of the area.  

 Promote Boston as a visitor hub for the area. 

 Develop our membership of the New Hanseatic League to promote tourism in Boston Borough and Lincolnshire in general. 

 Build on the transatlantic relationship with Boston USA. 

  

P
age 28



PRIORITY 3 – ENVIRONMENTAL AWARENESS AND ACCOUNTABILITY  

The Council declared a climate change emergency in January 2020, committing to reduce the Council’s carbon footprint and become net zero carbon in advance of the 

timetable declared by UK Parliament.  The Borough Council will play its role to ensure we begin to reverse the impact on climate change.  We will encourage others to follow 

our example. 

We will:  

 Develop a Carbon Reduction Plan for the Council to achieve the target agreed. 

 Ensure that every service and policy deliver on the climate change commitments of the Council to support positive environmental impact on the Borough. 

 Be climate aware and spearhead the change in thinking around the impact the environment has not only in Boston but on the planet. 

 

PRIORITY 4 – DELIVERING HIGH QUALITY SERVICES AND MAXIMISING USE OF TECHNOLOGY TO SUPPORT RESIDENTS 

There is continued pressure on funding to local government, whilst at the same time the demand is increasing for many of the services we deliver.   Making use of the latest 

technology will increase the efficiency of our services so we can deliver more for our communities.   There is also the opportunity to be more creative in the ways we generate 

income to fund our core services. 

We will: 

 Make better use of technology and data to reduce costs and improve performance and efficiency. 

 Produce and deliver a Workforce Development Strategy that supports the delivery of the Corporate Strategy.  

 Seek new, and more creative, ways to generate income to support the Council’s ambitions. 

MEASURING SUCCESS 

It is important that we tell you how we are doing. We monitor and manage our performance and report this to our scrutiny committees and Cabinet. This information is 
published on our website. 
 
The priorities will also underpin development of annual service plans and will cascade through this process to individual employee appraisals to support the delivery of this 
Strategy.  

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	Corporate & Community Committee Minutes of 4th June 2020

	1 DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY/PRIORITIES FOR CONSULTATION
	Appendix A - Draft Corporate Strategy


